
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Audit and Governance Committee 

Date: Wednesday, 27th July, 2022 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Minutes  4 - 7 

 Members are requested to approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 
the 14th June 2022. 

 

 
3   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
4   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
5   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press  

 

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

 

 
6   Annual Governance Statement 2021-22  8 - 44 

Public Document Pack



 To consider a report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate/Interim Director of Resources. 

 

 
7   Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22  45 - 56 

 To consider a report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate/ Chief Finance Officer. 

 

 
8   Exclusion of Press and Public  

 

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

 
9   Special Guardianship  57 - 70 

 To consider the report of the Director of Children’s Services / Head of 
Internal Audit. 

 

 
10   Presentation - 2021/22 Accounts  

 

 To receive a presentation from the Assistant Chief Finance Officer.  

 

Audit and Governance Committee Members 
Craig Ainsworth Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Aisling-Blaise Gallagher 
Councillor James Gartside Councillor Peter Hodgkinson 
Councillor Andy Kelly Councillor Peter Malcolm 
Councillor Philip Massey Councillor Amber Nisa 
Jaime Sanderson Councillor Lee Wolf 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James 
 
01706 924715 



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 14 June 2022 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Malcolm (Chair); Councillors Ainsworth, 
Susan Emmott, Gallagher, Hodgkinson, Massey and Nisa 
 
OFFICERS: A. Ibrahim (Monitoring Officer), J. Murphy (Chief Finance Officer), 
T. Brown and J. Sear (Internal Audit), J. Timpson (Children’s Services), S. 
Smith (Deputy Chief Finance Officer), R. Barker (Assistant Director – 
Workforce), A. Ridyard (Strategic Lead – HR/Pay), M. Garraway (Head of 
Governance). 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   Councillor Wardle (Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Corporate); K. Murhpy and D, Watson (Mazars); Craig Ainsworth 
(Independent Person) 
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: C Councillor James Gartside, Councillor Kelly; 
J. Sanderson (Independent Member) and M. Carruthers-Watt (Independent 
Person). 
 

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

2 AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 2021-22 Q4 REPORT 
The Committee considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Head of Internal Audit which summarised the work of the Internal 
Audit team during the fourth quarter of 2020/2021 (January – March 2021).  
 
It was reported the Internal Audit team had been able to provide either 
substantial or adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management 
in all the 10 audits which had been finalised and issued during quarter four.  

 2 were substantial 
 5 were adequate 
 3 were limited. 

 
Action plans have been agreed with the appropriate managers to address all 
the issues identified in a timely manner. Furthermore, the Internal Audit team 
had completed 97% of their agreed Audit Plan which achieved the agreed 
target for the year.  
 
The submitted report enabled the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for 
governance, to scrutinise the Internal Audit team’s coverage during the fourth 
quarter of 2020/21 of all Services within the Council. The work of Rochdale 
Borough Council’s Internal Audit team was governed by the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.  
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
3 COUNTER FRAUD 2021-22 Q4 REPORT 

The Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate / Head of Internal Audit 
introduced a report summarising the work of the Counter Fraud Team during 
the fourth quarter of 2021/22.   
 
Members were informed that the Counter Fraud Team had received 246 
referrals during the period having achieved £108,432 in overpayments and 
savings. In relation to the Omicron Business Grant over 300 checks had been 
undertaken in conjunction with the Business Rates Team.  Furthermore 13 
reports have been closed within the National Fraud Initiative, with 100matches 
having been checked within these reports. The Team had received the 
2021 NFI Single Person Discount data matches with 231 matches had been 
checked during quarter four. Members noted the Counter Fraud Team 
participated in two proactive Partnership Enforcement Team days of action 
where fraud checks were conducted on businesses. In addition, the two 
proactive operations resulted in one arrest and over £20,000 of illegal goods 
being seized. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

4 RISK MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22 
The Committee considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Head of Risk and Insurance, summarising Risk Management work 
undertaken during the 2020/2021 year.  
 
The report highlighted the significant progress made to improve the risk 
register system and provided updated guidance on methods to record and 
manage Service risks effectively, including the publication of the revised Risk 
Management Policy. It was reported that the Leadership team had maintained 
regular reviews of the risks to the overarching Council objectives recorded 
under the ‘Corporate Risk Register’.  
 
The Committee were informed that the Insurance team had successfully 
handled incoming claims and the placement of the Council’s insurance 
programme cost-effectively. The Annual Report outlined how the team had 
managed to achieve a total cost-mitigation on settled claims for the year of 
£3,253,484.  
 
Resolved 
That the Risk Management Annual Report 2020/21 be noted. 
 

5 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Head of Internal Audit setting out the work of the Council’s Internal 
Audit service during 2020/21 and presented their opinion as to the 
effectiveness of the Council’s overall control environment, governance and 
risk management for 2020/21. 
 

Page 4



The Committee were advised that of the 97% of the planned audit work that 
was completed during 2020/21, audit assurance opinions issued on the 
adequacy of the internal controls were recorded as ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ 
in 97% of cases.  
 
Four audits were awarded a ‘limited’ assurance opinion. The Service had 
carried out an audit in relation to ‘Best Value’ reports issued at three local 
authorities (Liverpool, Nottingham and Croydon). The report opinion was rated 
as adequate. Findings had been used in conjunction with the risk register, and 
with discussions with senior managers, to set the audit plan for 2022/23. 
 
The Head of Internal Audit concluded that an adequate level of assurance can 
be given that the Council's overall framework of governance, risk 
management and control remains appropriate and has been complied with. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

6 COUNTER FRAUD 2021-22 ANNUAL REPORT 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Head of Internal Audit setting work undertaken by the Counter 
Fraud Team during 2021/22. 
 
It was reported that the team had received 816 referrals and achieved 
£425,206 in overpayments and savings. Over 200 business grant checks had 
been undertaken, with 29 reports closed within the National Fraud initiative. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

7 INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 2022 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Head of Internal Audit seeking approval the Internal Audit Charter. 
 
The work of Internal Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS require an Internal Audit Charter to be 
approved by the Audit and Governance Committee in order to define Internal 
Audit’s purpose, authority and responsibility. It establishes Internal Audit’s 
position within the Council and reporting lines, authorises access to records, 
personnel and physical property relevant to the performance of audit work, 
and defines the scope of Internal Audit activity. 
 
Resolved 
That the Internal Audit Charter be approved. 
 

8 DRAFT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2021/22 
The Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate / Chief Finance Officer 
introduced a report setting out the draft Statement of Accounts 2021/22 which 
had been published for public inspection. 
 

Page 5



Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

9 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Resolved 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
 
Reason for the resolution 
Should the press and public remain during debate on this item there may be a 
disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Part 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 

10 INTERNAL AUDIT LIMITED ASSURANCE REPORTS Q4 2021-22 
Consideration was given to a report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Head of Internal Audit setting out the actions in relation to those 
audits which had received a limited assurance. 
 
It was reported that updates for the progress on action points would be 
brought to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

Page 6



Page 1 of 2 

Report to the Audit & Governance Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 27 July 2022 
 
Portfolio Holder  Portfolio Holder for Finance and 

Corporate 
 
Report Author Shaun Knowles 
 
Public / Private Document Public 

 
 

Annual Governance Statement 2021-22 

1.0 Executive Summary 
1.1 The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 

accordance with the law and proper standards, that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently 
and effectively. 

1.2 The Annual Governance Statement attached at Appendix 1 explains how the 
Council has complied with “The Code” and meets the requirements of 
regulation 6(1) of The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 in relation to 
conducting a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and 
the publication of an annual governance statement. 

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 That the Annual Governance Statement 2020/21 be approved.    

3.0 Reason for Recommendation 
3.1 The Council is required under Regulation 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015, to produce an Annual Governance Statement to 
accompany the annual statement of accounts, which must be signed by the 
Leader of the Council, Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 
Officer) and the Monitoring Officer. 

3.2 The Audit and Governance Committee is the body which is required to 
approve the Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

4.0 Key Points for Consideration 
4.1 The purpose of the AGS process is to provide a continuous review of the 

Council’s internal control and risk management systems, and to provide 
assurance on their effectiveness and/or to produce a management action plan 
to address identified weaknesses areas for improvement in either process. At 
its most effective, the process of preparing the AGS adds value to the 
corporate governance and internal control framework of the Council. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Page 2 of 2 

4.2 The Council’s External Auditor’s view is that the arrangements required for 
gathering assurances for the preparation of the AGS provide an opportunity 
for Councils to consider the robustness of their governance arrangements. In 
doing so, Councils need to recognise that this is a corporate issue, affecting 
everyone in the organisation. It is also important to recognise that the purpose 
of the AGS is not just to be ‘compliant’, but also to provide an accurate 
representation of the arrangements in place during the year and to highlight 
those areas where improvement is required. This will also demonstrate to 
stakeholders what those arrangements are. 

5.0 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update 
5.1 The Governance Board oversees the actions highlighted within the Annual 

Governance Statement. Updates on each of the Annual Governance 
Statement Plan items can be seen in Appendix 1 of the attached Annual 
Governance Statement Annual Report. 

6.0 Alternatives Considered 
6.1 No other options were considered. 

7.0 Cost & Budget Summary 
7.1 No specific financial implications. The production of the AGS aligns with the 

production of the Annual Accounts and is published alongside the audited 
accounts. 

8.0 Risk & Policy Implications 
8.1 The Authority is required to prepare and publish an Annual Governance 

Statement to meet the statutory requirement set out in Regulation 6 (1) of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. Failure to do so could result in non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. 

8.2 The Annual Government Statement enables the Authority to monitor the 
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

9.0 Consultation 
9.1 The Leader of the Council, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finance Officer and 

Monitoring Officer have received the report. 

10.0 Information 
10.1 Background Papers Place of Inspection 

None  Rochdale Borough Council, Number One,
  Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale,  
  OL16 1XU 

10.2 For further information contact Shaun Knowles 

  01706 925497 
  shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 8

mailto:shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk


2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01)

 

Annual 
Governance 
Statement 
2021 / 22

P
age 9



2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01)

1.0 Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................3 

2.0 Scope of Responsibility ...............................................................................................................................................................4 

2.1 Scope .......................................................................................................................................................................................4 

2.2 The Code of Corporate Governance ........................................................................................................................................4 

3.0 The Purpose of the Annual Governance Statement ....................................................................................................................5 

3.1 The Code of Corporate Governance ........................................................................................................................................5 

4.0 The Governance Framework .......................................................................................................................................................5 

4.1 Governance Arrangements ......................................................................................................................................................5 

4.2 The Audit & Governance Committee ........................................................................................................................................6 

4.3 The Governance Board ............................................................................................................................................................6 

5.0 Review of the Effectiveness of the Governance Framework .......................................................................................................7 

5.1 Annual Review .........................................................................................................................................................................7 

5.2 Directors’ Assurance Statements (DAS) ..................................................................................................................................7 

5.3 The Annual Self-Assessment Process .....................................................................................................................................8 

5.4 Financial Management Code ...................................................................................................................................................8 

5.5 Financial Regulations ...............................................................................................................................................................9 

5.5 Other Control Mechanisms .......................................................................................................................................................9 

6.0 Impact of Coronavirus ..................................................................................................................................................................9 

7.0 Internal Audit and the Opinion on Internal Control .....................................................................................................................10 

8.0 External Audit and Inspection Reports ......................................................................................................................................11 

9.0 Conclusion .................................................................................................................................................................................12 

10.0 Actions Planned for 2022 / 23 ................................................................................................................................................12 

11.0 Signed on behalf of Rochdale Borough Council .....................................................................................................................13 

Appendix 1 – Rochdale Borough Council Assurance Framework .......................................................................................................14 

Appendix 2 – The Governance Framework .........................................................................................................................................15 

Appendix 3 – Actions from previous Annual Governance Statements ................................................................................................29 

P
age 10



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 3 of 35 

1.0 Introduction 
1.1 The Annual Governance Statement sets out how Rochdale Borough Council meets its Governance Standards as detailed 

in the Code of Corporate Governance, the requirements of Regulation 6(1) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
which would accompany the Annual Accounts, and takes into account the seven good governance principles set out in the 
CIPFA / Solace ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016’.  

 The Annual Governance Statement identifies and reviews: 

 How governance has been operating during the previous financial year; 

 How effective the governance arrangements have been; 

 Where Rochdale Borough Council has demonstrated good governance; 

 Where Rochdale Borough Council should place its focus in relation to governance during the forthcoming financial 
year; 

 Where improvements can be made to processes and procedures; and 

 How Rochdale Borough Council can continue to ensure effective governance arrangements that enable it to 
manage and deliver high quality, value for money services to the public and residents of the Borough of Rochdale. 

1.2 Rochdale Borough Council recognises the importance of having arrangements for good governance in place, and the 
Annual Governance Statement highlights that, in a number of areas, there are effective arrangements in place. 

1.3 Rochdale Borough Council recognises the importance of continually reviewing and improving its governance arrangements 
to ensure that they remain robust and fit for purpose. Rochdale Borough Council will continue to review, streamline and 
improve relevant processes and procedures to ensure these arrangements remain effective. 

1.4 2021 - 22 continued to be challenging in relation to the Pandemic, and Rochdale Borough Council continued to focus and 
manage its Covid response and Covid recovery programme to ensure that it delivered a managed and methodical, 
evidence led clear strategy out of the pandemic. 

P
age 11



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 4 of 35 

2.0 Scope of Responsibility 
2.1 Scope 
2.1.1 Rochdale Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with statutory 

requirements and related standards. It also looks to ensure that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, 
and used economically, efficiently and effectively.   

2.1.2 Rochdale Borough Council also has a duty, under the Local Government Act 1999, to make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

2.1.3 Whilst discharging this overall responsibility, Rochdale Borough Council is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions. This includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. These arrangements are intended to make sure that actions are carried out in 
the right way, for the right people, in good time, and in a fair, open, honest and accountable way. To support this, Rochdale 
Borough Council has a Code of Corporate Governance. 

2.2 The Code of Corporate Governance 
2.2.1 The Code of Corporate Governance and the Council’s Constitution are reviewed annually to ensure they remain consistent 

with the principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy and the Society of Local Authority Chief 
Executives and Senior Managers (CIPFA / SOLACE) joint framework for delivering good governance in local government. 

2.2.2 The Council has reviewed its existing governance arrangements and has subsequently approved and adopted a local Code 
of Corporate Governance (The Code), which is consistent with the seven principles of Corporate Governance as set out in 
the CIPFA / SOLACE (2016) Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. 

P
age 12



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 5 of 35 

3.0 The Purpose of the Annual Governance Statement 
3.1 The Code of Corporate Governance 
3.1.1 The Annual Governance Statement sets out how the Council complies with the seven principles of Corporate Governance. 

These principles tie in with Rochdale Borough Councils Code of Corporate Governance, the Governance Framework and 
the assurance gathering principles laid out in the CiPFA Finance Advisory Network “Rough Guide for Practitioners”. 

3.1.2 This Annual Governance Statement explains how Rochdale Borough Council has complied with The Code and also meets 
the requirements of Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations (2015 regulation 6), in relation to conducting a review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control and the publication of an Annual Governance Statement. 

3.1.3 The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It 
cannot eliminate all risk, and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The 
system of internal control identifies and prioritises risks; evaluates the likelihood of those risks being realised and the 
impact should they be realised; and aims to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

4.0 The Governance Framework 
4.1 Governance Arrangements 
4.1.1 Rochdale Borough Councils governance arrangements are designed to ensure that an appropriate and proportionate 

approach is taken to managing risk, so as to provide reasonable assurance of the Council’s control effectiveness. 
4.1.2 The Governance Framework comprises of the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which Rochdale 

Borough Council is directed and controlled. It also includes the activities through which it is accountable to, engages with 
and leads the community. 

4.1.3 The Governance Framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and consider 
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services in the Borough. 

4.1.4 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  
It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives.  The system is based on an ongoing process 
designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the 
likelihood of those risks being realised and their potential impact should they be realised. It is designed to help manage 
them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

P
age 13



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 6 of 35 

4.1.5 The process of reviewing and monitoring governance arrangements across the Council is ongoing, supported by both the 
Governance Board and Internal Audit, with updates provided throughout the year to the Audit and Governance Committee. 

4.1.6 Rochdale Borough Councils Governance Framework was reviewed and updated during 2021 - 22. The Governance 
Framework is set out in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. 

4.2 The Audit & Governance Committee 
4.2.1 The Audit & Governance Committee (AGC) meets, as a minimum, five times per year. The Committee is made up of 

elected Councillors and independent members. 
4.2.2 For 2021-22, Members were given information relating to the AGC and were offered face to face training. Further training is 

being developed for 2022 - 23. 

4.3 The Governance Board 
4.3.1 The Governance Board is made up of the Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce) / Monitoring Officer, Deputy 

Chief Finance Officer (Deputy S151 Officer), Head of Internal Audit, Head of Governance, Head of IG and Customer 
Feedback and Risk & Insurance Manager. 

4.3.2 It is a key part of the Council’s governance strategy and meets regularly with its purpose being to: 
 oversee and develop the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements maintaining and enhancing the public's 

confidence in the elected members (councillors), officers (employees) and the organisation as a whole; 

 have overall responsibility for ensuring the principles within the Rochdale Borough Council Code of Corporate 
Governance are adhered to; 

 ensure that the Council’s values are kept to the fore in all decisions and actions; 

 ensure good decision making takes place through availability of information and clear accountabilities; 

 have robust strategic risk management processes in place to protect the Council, colleagues, and the people of 
Rochdale; and  

 comply with the Council’s regulatory obligations 
4.3.3 The Governance Board has responsibilities to ensure strong governance throughout the Council, effective risk 

management is operational throughout the Council, and robust control frameworks are in place to comply with our 
regulatory obligations and deliver good outcomes to the people of Rochdale. Any issues are reported to full Council. 

P
age 14



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 7 of 35 

5.0 Review of the Effectiveness of the Governance Framework 
5.1 Annual Review 
5.1.1 The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its Governance Framework 

including the system of internal control. To support this review, every Director is required to complete an annual assurance 
statement in conjunction with their Senior Management Teams to assess the adequacy of the governance arrangements 
across seven key principles. 

5.2 Directors’ Assurance Statements (DAS) 
5.2.1 The DAS process has been reviewed and updated during 2021 / 22, with a full briefing given to the leadership on the 

requirements. 
5.2.2 Directors and senior managers are required to assess the adequacy of their governance arrangements across a number of 

governance standards by answering 10 questions relating to: 
 Behaviour / Development 

 Decisions / Outcomes 

 Policies & Procedures 

 Risk / Strategy 

 Stakeholders 
5.2.3 The questions are scored on a ratio of 1 – Poor, to 5 – Excellent, and then weighted accordingly. 
5.2.4 Appropriate, up to date, evidence is requested and reviewed to support the details included in each annual assurance 

statement. 
5.2.5 Challenge sessions are also conducted with each Director. These are led by Internal Audit with a view to ensuring that the 

statements accurately reflect the status of each directorate and related service. 
5.2.6 The Chief Finance Office and The Monitoring Officer are kept abreast of any concerns noted during the review process. 

P
age 15



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 8 of 35 

5.2.7  The outputs from this process are a primary source of information for the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement 
and also help to set, where appropriate, audits for the next year’s Audit Plan. In addition, it informs the annual Governance 
Action Plan, which is set out to support continuous improvement across the Council. The review of effectiveness is also 
informed by the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report, together with independent scrutiny by the external auditors and 
other review agencies and inspectorates. 

5.3 The Annual Self-Assessment Process 
5.3.1 The annual self-assessment process undertaken this year, which provides clear accountability and robust scrutiny and 

challenge, can be summarised as follows: 

 
5.3.2 Details of the Effectiveness of the Governance Control Framework can be found in Appendix 2. 

5.4 Financial Management Code 
5.4.1 A self-assessment document has been completed for Rochdale which evidences compliance.  Although Rochdale is 

compliant for 2021/22, areas for continuous improvement have been identified and discussed with the Leadership Team 
and Portfolio Holder for Finance and Corporate.  An action plan will be carried out in the 2022 / 23 Financial Year to ensure 
greater and continuous compliance by 31st March 2023 
 
 

P
age 16



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 9 of 35 

5.5 Financial Regulations 
5.5.1 A full review of the controls and responsibilities in regard to the financial regulations was commenced during 2021 / 22. This 

is due to be finalised during 2022 / 23. 

5.5 Other Control Mechanisms 
5.5.1 Best Value Reports – A review of some of the more high profile best value / public interest reports issued against other 

local authorities was carried out during 2021 / 22. Recommendations made in each of these reports were compared to 
arrangements in place at Rochdale Borough Council, with, in the main, a positive outcome. The review also supporting the 
drafting of the 2022 / 23 Internal Audit Plan. 

5.5.2 Anti-Fraud & Corruption – The Anti-Fraud & Corruption Policy was reviewed, updated and presented to Audit & 
Governance Committee during 2021 / 22.  
Training was also updated and sent out to all relevant colleagues to complete. 

6.0 Impact of Coronavirus 
6.1 The Coronavirus pandemic continued to have a significant impact on Council services. By implementing a co-ordinated 

response, the Council ensured that resources were prioritised to those most in need. Essential services have also been 
maintained and services have adapted to ensure resource has been focussed in the right areas. This includes, but is not 
restricted to, the distribution of emergency food, the distribution of vouchers to replace free school meals during school 
holidays, welfare support to vulnerable residents and to provide support to local businesses and protect jobs in the 
Borough.   

6.2 Members and Leadership Team have received regular updates regarding the financial impact of Coronavirus and work 
continues to plan for the impact on the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

6.3 The Council and the CCG’s joint response has been led through a Gold Command Group, comprising of key personnel 
within the council. This was disbanded during 2021 – 22 and a Recovery and Resilience Co-ordination Group established, 
made up of senior leaders within our joint organisations, the wider public sector and the voluntary sector. A review of the 
impact of coronavirus, the lessons learnt and the opportunities to ‘Build back better’ is ongoing. The Group was supported 
through the work of a number of more operational sub-groups dealing with operational impacts at a more granular level. 
 
 
 

P
age 17



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 10 of 35 

7.0 Internal Audit and the Opinion on Internal Control 
7.1 Internal Audit’s role includes examining and appraising the system of internal control established by management. It 

involves an evaluation of controls against an assessment of Rochdale Borough Councils agreed risks to determine their 
adequacy, reliability and effectiveness and how well the responsibilities assigned to managers are being carried out in 
practice. 

7.2 An external peer review completed in 2017 confirmed that Internal Audit conforms to the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. The Council can also confirm that the assurance arrangements comply fully with CIPFA’s Statement on the 
Role of the Head of Internal Audit in Public Service Organisations 2010. The next review is due to take place in financial 
year 2022 / 23. 

7.3 The Internal Audit Plan for 2021 / 22 was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee on 30 March 2021. In 
conjunction with Service Directors and leadership teams, the planned audit coverage for the year was based on an 
assessment of risks to provide assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control. 

7.4 The Internal Audit Plan for 2021 / 22 was developed after consideration of a number of factors. These included: 

 A review of recent audits with key issues noted. 

 Time since previous audits. 

 Taking into account the Corporate Risk Register. 

 Discussions with relevant Directors and key personnel. 

 Taking into account details of Best Value reviews at other authorities. 
7.5 Planned work has also been supplemented by ad hoc reviews in respect of suspected irregularities and other work 

commissioned by Officers and Members of the Council, together with assurances derived from work conducted by 
independent review bodies and internal assurance mechanisms. 

7.6 Risks associated with the Council’s operations are continually monitored by the Head of Internal Audit, and both the Audit 
Plan adapted where necessary and relevant resources allocated, so as to allow the formation of an opinion on the Council’s 
governance arrangements. Updates are given regularly to the Audit & Governance Committee. 

P
age 18



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 11 of 35 

7.7 Internal Audit continued to give minor support to the impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic, mainly in relation to the 
distribution of food vouchers during school holidays. Despite this support, internal audit was resourced appropriately and 
was effectively deployed in pursuit of completion of the audit plan. 

7.8 Of the planned audit work completed during 2021 / 22, audit assurance opinions issued on the adequacy of the internal 
controls were recorded as 'adequate' or ‘substantial’ in 91% of cases (97.6% in 2020 / 21). Four audits were awarded a 
‘limited’ assurance opinion. The details of this audit work and any follow-up activity has been reported to Members in the 
Internal Audit quarterly reports. 

7.9 The issues identified on the action plan with regard to some procurements, whilst compliant with Council’s Standing Orders 
for Contracts, not being supported through the ‘Key decision’ regime have now been completed. This prompted an 
additional review to be undertaken and has resulted in further actions being agreed to enhance the process. 

7.10 Whilst no systems of control can provide absolute assurance, on the basis of the work undertaken in 2021 / 22 covering 
financial and operating systems, risk management and governance, the Head of Internal Audit concluded that an adequate 
level of assurance can be given that the Council's overall framework of governance, risk management and control remains 
appropriate and has been complied with. 

8.0 External Audit and Inspection Reports 
8.1 The Council’s external auditor is Mazars. 
8.2 The audit comprises of two elements:  

 the audit of the financial statements; and 

 the assessment of the Council’s arrangements for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (Value for Money). 

8.3 The external auditor reported to the Audit and Governance Committee on 9 August 2021 about the issues arising from the 
20/21 audit and gave an unqualified opinion on the accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021. 

8.4 External audit concluded that the Council had proper arrangements in place to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, except for in relation to non-compliance with the Council’s Constitution in respect of 
the key decision making process. 
 
 

P
age 19



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 12 of 35 

9.0 Conclusion 
9.1 This Annual Governance Statement demonstrates that the systems and processes the Council employs continued to 

provide a comprehensive level of assurance to the Council and the residents of the Borough in its governance 
arrangements during 2021 / 2022. 

9.2 The governance arrangements, as described above, are actioned on an ongoing basis and have provided an effective 
framework for identifying governance issues and taking mitigating action. Compliance levels overall have been good. 

9.3 Going forward, the Council will continue to review its Governance Framework and take steps to carry out the actions for 
improvements identified in the review to further strengthen the Council’s governance arrangements 

10.0 Actions Planned for 2022 / 23 
10.1 The following actions have been agreed as a priority for 2022 / 23: 
No Governance Issues Action Required Delivery 

programme / 
Lead Service 

Due 
Date 

1 Financial Regulations a. Complete a full review of the Financial Regulations. Director of 
Resources 

31 / 03 / 23 

2 Audit & Governance 
Committee training 

a. Review and update the training package offered to Audit & 
Governance Committee members. 

b. Ensure that all members of the Audit & Governance 
Committee receive relevant training on an ongoing basis. 

Head of 
Internal Audit 

31 / 03 / 23 

3 High priority audit 
recommendations 

a. A review of the audit recommendation process to be 
completed. 

b. To regularly review High priority recommendations to ensure 
that they are acted upon within adequate timeframes. 

Head of 
Internal Audit 

31 / 03 / 23 

4 Transformation a. As the transformation plan progresses, appropriate 
governance streams are developed and followed. 

Director of 
Transformation 

31 / 03 / 23 
and 
Ongoing 

P
age 20



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 13 of 35 

11.0 Signed on behalf of Rochdale Borough Council 
Type Detail 

Name: Julie Murphy 

Signed:  

Position: Director of Resources / Chief Finance Officer 

Name: Asif Ibrahim 

Signed:  

Position: Assistant Director: (Legal, Governance & Workforce) / Monitoring Officer 

Name: Steve Rumbelow 

Signed:  

Position: Chief Executive Officer 

Name: Neil Emmott 

Signed:  

Position: Councillor: Leader of the Council 

P
age 21



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 14 of 35 

Appendix 1 – Rochdale Borough Council Assurance Framework 

 

P
age 22



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 15 of 35 

Appendix 2 – The Governance Framework 
The following table details the Governance Framework of the Council, which collectively underpins the seven principles providing 
an analysis of the effectiveness of each element of the framework, and areas where improvements are required which flow through 
to the action plan at the end of the statement.   
No Principle How the Council Challenged these 

principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

1. Behaving with 
integrity, 
demonstrating 
strong 
commitment to 
ethical values, 
and respecting 
the rule of law 

1.1 Officers behave with integrity, 
act in the public interest and 
demonstrate protecting the 
reputation of the Council. 
 

4 The Rochdale 
Way 

Sets out the values that are at the 
heart of how all activities are 
approached. 

  1.2 Robust policies and procedures 
and reviewing mechanisms are 
in place, which puts emphasis 
on ethical values 

 The Council 
Constitution 

Including: 
 Officers Code of Conduct; 
 Code of Conduct for Councillors 

and Co-opted Members; and 
 Protocol on Councillor / Officer 

relations. 
  1.3 Commitment to the rule of the 

law as well as following relevant 
laws and regulations can be 
clearly demonstrated. 

 

 Monitoring Officer Promotes and maintains high 
standards of conduct, ensuring that the 
decision making processes and 
services are provided in accordance 
with legislation and within the powers 
of the Council.  The Monitoring Officer 
also has responsibility for the 

P
age 23

http://www.rochdale.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-and-committees/Pages/constitution-of-the-council.aspx


 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 16 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

Constitution to ensure that it remains 
current and meets all legal and good 
practice requirements. They also 
review the Member’s register of 
interests annually. 

  1.4 There are frameworks in place 
for decision-making and other 
key actions. 

 Corporate Plan Sets out our priorities which contribute 
to the Rochdale Borough Community 
Strategy. 

    Anti-Fraud & 
Corruption Policy 

Recognises the Council is at risk to 
fraud and corruption both from within 
the Council and outside it.  This Policy 
sets out our zero tolerance approach to 
fraud and corruption. 

    Confidential 
Reporting 
(Whistleblowing 
Policy) 

Provides protection for individuals who 
raise any serious concerns they have 
about suspected illegal or illegitimate 
practices at the Council and explains 
how these will be investigated. 

    Corporate 
Complaints 
procedure 

Demonstrates mechanisms that are in 
place across all channels, and 
processes established to investigate, 

P
age 24



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 17 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

respond to and resolve all complaints 
received. 

 

2. Ensuring 
openness and 
comprehensive 
stakeholder 
engagement 

2.1 Engagement with stakeholders 
is clearly defined with clear 
actions and plans in place.  

4 Rochdale.gov.uk Is the Council’s website, providing 
information in a clear way that 
residents use most, such as Council 
Tax, and Waste and Recycling can be 
accessed quickly and easily from the 
main page. 

  2.2 Stakeholder engagement allows 
for resources to be used more 
efficiently and outcomes 
achieved more effectively.  

 Council 
Committees 

Are held in public (other than in limited 
circumstances where consideration of 
confidential or exempt information 
means that the public are excluded), 
with agenda and reports being 
produced digitally on the Council’s 
website. 

  2.3 Appropriate consultation and 
engagement are used to 
determine the most appropriate 
and effective interventions / 
courses of action. 

 Decision to be 
made 

The Council publishes a Register of 
Key and/or private decisions to notify 
the public of the most significant 
decisions it is due to take.  This will be 
enhanced significantly by both 
strengthening the constitution and 
implementing additional actions to 

P
age 25



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 18 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

resolve issues identified in relation to 
Key Decision processes. 

  2.4 Communication methods are 
transparent, effective and 
defined around 
stakeholder/community 
engagement. 

 Consultation Hub Demonstrates how the Council 
informs, consults and involves 
residents in significant decisions 
including service and budget changes. 
Their views are submitted to those 
making decisions for consideration. 
Consultations this year have included 
Community Centre grant funding, 
Budget challenges, library provision 
and school enlargement. 

  2.5 Feedback mechanisms are 
utilised to demonstrate how 
views have been taken into 
account and implemented. 

 Borough’s 
Sustainable 
Community 
Strategy 

Sets out the vision and priorities for a 
10 year period. This Strategy has been 
refreshed and brought together the 
SCS and a number of thematic 
strategic plans that had been 
developed by key strategic 
partnerships into a single Place Plan 
for the Borough 

P
age 26



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 19 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

  2.6 The views and experiences of 
communities, residents, service 
users and outside organisations 
are collected and evaluated. 

 

 Partnerships The Council maintains information on 
our strategic Partnerships and 
continues to assess the strength of the 
governance arrangements of each 
partnership, enabling any required 
improvements to be identified and 
addressed. 

3. Defining 
outcomes in 
terms of 
sustainable 
economic, 
social, and 
environmental 
benefits 

3.1 There is an agreed upon vision 
statement which identifies the 
service’s purpose and intended 
outcomes. 

4 Annual Budget The Council sets a Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy which sets out the 
financial assumptions and provides a 
set of goals for financial decision 
making for the planning period ahead. 
Work is on-going with Members and 
Leadership Team to understand the 
longer term impact of Covid-19 on the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

  3.2 This vision statement contains 
appropriate performance 
indicators which provide the 

 Greater 
Manchester 
Strategy 

The Council plays an active role in 
supporting the objectives of the 
Greater Manchester Combined 

P
age 27



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 20 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

basis for the Council’s planning 
and overall strategy 
management. 

 

Authority (GMCA), set out in the new 
plan for Greater Manchester called Our 
People, Our Place. 

  3.3 Outcomes are delivered on a 
sustainable basis and within the 
resources that are available to 
the department. 

 

 Regenerating the 
Borough 

The Borough has benefitted from 
unprecedented levels of investment in 
recent years, with money from the 
Council, private sector and 
organisations like the Heritage Lottery 
Fund and Transport for Greater 
Manchester (TfGM) helping to improve 
a number of areas. 

  3.4 Risks are identified and 
managed in relation to 
outcomes. 

 

 Place Plan The Council’s Place Plan sets out our 
vision for the Borough from 2016-2021 
and confirms our agreed strategic 
priorities. 

  3.5 The combined economic, social 
and environmental impact of 
policies, plans and decisions 
are considered and evaluated 
when taking decisions about 
service provision. 

   

P
age 28



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 21 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

  3.6 . Access to services is open and 
fair. 

   

  3.7 The longer-term outlook 
regarding decision making, 
considers risk and is 
transparent where there are 
potential conflicts between the 
Council’s intended outcomes 
and short-term factors such as 
the political cycle or financial 
constraints 
 

   

4. Determining the 
interventions 
necessary to 
optimise the 
achievement of 
the intended 
outcomes 

4.1 Ensuring decision makers 
receive key objectives 
(indicating how the outcome 
would be achieved), and a 
rigorous analysis of a variety of 
options (including key risks to 
each option), to enable them to 
ensure best value is achieved, 
however services are ultimately 
provided.  

 Corporate and 
Service Plans 

Are where the Council plans its activity 
at a strategic level through its budget 
and business planning cycle.  It does 
this in consultation with internal and 
external stakeholders to ensure 
services delivered across different 
parts of the organisations and partners 
complement each other and avoid 
duplication. 

  4.2 Outcomes are reviewed, based 
on feedback and priorities 

 The Strategic 
Place Board and 
Integrated 

Are responsible for Integrated 
Commissioning and the development of 
one Integrated Commissioning 

P
age 29



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 22 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

before decisions are made and 
implemented. 

 

Commissioning 
Board 

Function for Health, Social Care and 
Public Health for Rochdale Borough.   

 

  4.3 All stakeholders are engaged in 
considering how services and 
actions should be planned and 
delivered. 

 

 Committee 
reports 

Through Committee reports, decision 
makers and Scrutiny Committees 
receive accurate, relevant and timely 
performance and intelligence to 
support them with objective and 
rigorous analysis of options, covering 
intended outcomes, financial impact 
and associated risks informing efficient 
service delivery. 

  4.4 Appropriate key performance 
indicators are in place as part of 
planning processes in order to 
identify how the performance of 
services and projects are to be 
measured. 

 

 Decision list Delegation of decision making to 
officers is detailed in the Constitution 
so that they can deal with the day-to-
day running of the service without the 
need to constantly refer matters back 
to Elected Members. Details of what 
decisions are taken in this way are 
included in the list of responsibilities for 
functions in the Council's Constitution. 
Further specific delegations may be 

P
age 30



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 23 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

granted through recommendation in 
public reports to Committee. 

  4.5 Budgets are prepared in 
accordance with organisational 
objectives, strategies and the 
medium-term financial plan 

 Committees Through a number of Committees, the 
effectiveness of the Council’s 
interventions and the quality of its 
services is monitored through the 
provision of regular performance 
reports to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees showing progress towards 
goals and targets set in the budget and 
business plan. Key areas are 
highlighted so that decision makers 
can take corrective action where 
necessary. 

 

5. Developing the 
entity’s capacity, 
including the 
capability of its 
leadership and 
the individuals 
within it 

5.1 Maintaining an effective 
workforce strategy to develop 
the strategic allocation of 
resources. 

4 Roles The Council Leader and Chief 
Executive have clearly defined roles 
and maintain a shared understanding 
of roles and objectives. The Chief 
Executive leads on implementing 
strategy and managing service delivery 
and other outputs set by Members. 
The Chief Executive and Leader 
provide a check and balance for each 

P
age 31



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 24 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

other’s authority. Our Head of Paid 
Services is the Chief Executive who 
operates in accordance with relevant 
statute and professional guidance. 

  5.2 Ensure the continuing 
effectiveness of operations and 
performance through regular 
reviews. 

 Responsibilities 
for functions 

The Council maintains an annually 
updated list of Responsibilities for 
functions setting out which decisions 
and powers have been delegated to 
various Committees and Officers. 

  5.3 Plans are in place to consider 
the Leadership’s own 
effectiveness and ensuring 
leaders are open to constructive 
feedback. 

 Member and 
Officer relations 

Relations enable Elected Members 
and Senior Officers to have a shared 
understanding of their respective roles 
the Council has produced a Protocol 
governing Member and Officer 
relations. 

  5.4 Staff are challenged and 
supported through regular 
performance reviews, which 
take account of training or 
development needs. 

 

 Organisational 
development 
strategy 

The Council’s Organisational 
Development Strategy provides the 
framework for how the Council will 
maintain and / or develop the capacity 
to deliver its vision and priorities. 

  5.5 Arrangements are in place to 
maintain the health and 

 Apprenticeship The Council offers a full time 
Apprenticeship programme consisting 

P
age 32



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 25 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

wellbeing of the workforce and 
support individuals in 
maintaining their own physical 
and mental wellbeing. 

 

of full time employment while working 
towards nationally accredited 
qualifications. Apprentices are 
expected to combine employment with 
external assessments and exams and 
are available up to degree level. 

  5.6 Plans are in place to ensure the 
capabilities of Members and 
Senior Management to achieve 
effective leadership, and to 
enable the Council to respond 
successfully to changing legal 
and policy demands as well as 
economic, political and 
environmental changes. 

 Employee 
Assistance 
Programme 

The Council offers a comprehensive 
assistance programme to support 
colleagues wellbeing 

6. Managing risks 
and 
performance 
through robust 
internal control 
and strong 
public financial 
management 

6.1 Ensuring effective risk 
management is in place, with 
policies reviewed and updated 
as necessary. 

4 Risk Register The Council operates a Risk 
Management Strategy that aids 
decision making in pursuit of the 
organisation’s strategic objectives, 
protects the Council’s reputation and 
other assets and is compliant with 
statutory and regulatory obligations. 

  6.2 Strategies/plans to implement 
robust and integrated risk 

 Pentana The Pentana Risk IT system was 
implemented in July 2019 providing an 

P
age 33



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 26 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

management arrangements are 
in place and are regularly 
reviewed to ensure that they are 
working effectively 

improved method to maintain risk 
registers, and shared access alongside 
the CCG. 

  6.3 Responsibilities for managing 
individual risks are clearly 
allocated. 

 

 Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 

Decision making is supported by the 
Council’s risk management 
arrangements which are approved by 
the Audit and Governance Committee. 

  6.4 Strategy ensuring financial 
management supports both 
long-term achievement of 
outcomes and short-term 
financial and operational 
performance. 

 Governance 
Board 

Monitors the development and 
maintenance of corporate risk registers 
and the Leadership Team receive 
regular in-year updates on the 
management of risks within the 
Corporate Risk Register through the 
Leadership Dashboard. 

  6.5 Ensure that the quality and 
accuracy of data used in 
decision-making and 
performance monitoring is 
reviewed and monitored 
regularly 

 Internal Audit Is the Council’s independent 
assurance function which focuses on 
providing assurance on the 
management of key financial and non-
financial risks in each audit area. The 
Annual Internal Audit Plan was 
reviewed by the Chief Finance Officer 
and approved by the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 

P
age 34



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 27 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

  6.6 Appropriate and effective 
arrangements are in place and 
operate effectively to collect, 
store and share data. Also, 
when sharing data with other 
bodies. 

 Chief Finance 
Officer 

The Council complies fully with the 
principles of CIPFA’s Statement on the 
Role of the Chief Finance Officer in 
Local Government 2016. The Chief 
Finance Officer is a member of the 
Leadership Team and has the right of 
unfettered access and reporting to the 
Chief Executive, Leadership Team, 
Cabinet and Council. 

7. Implementing 
good practices 
in transparency, 
reporting, and 
audit to deliver 
effective 
accountability 

7.1 Mechanisms in place to report 
on performance, value for 
money and accountability of 
resources. 

7.2 Appropriate information is 
provided to ensure transparency 
and subject to scrutiny. 

4 Local 
Government 
Transparency 
Code 2015 

Sets out how the Government wants to 
place more power into citizens’ hands 
to increase democratic accountability. 
The Council uses this guidance to 
support how it publishes data relating 
to services. 

  7.3 Ensuring that, when working in 
partnership, arrangements for 
accountability are clear and the 
need for wider public 
accountability has been 
recognised and met. 

 Audit & 
Governance 
Committee 

The Council monitors the 
implementation of external audit 
recommendations.  Audit & 
Governance Committee receives an 
Annual External Audit Plan from the 
External Auditor which provides an 
overview of the planned scope and 
timing of the statutory audit of 
Rochdale Borough Council (‘the 

P
age 35



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 28 of 35 

No Principle How the Council Challenged these 
principles during 2021 / 2022 
Effectiveness rating: 
1 – Poor, 2 – Fair, 3 – Good,  
4 – Very Good, 5 – Excellent 

Rating Evidence Comment 

Council’) for those charged with 
governance.  The Committee receives 
periodic updates on progress of the 
Audit Plan. 

  7.4 Ensuring that recommendations 
made by internal and external 
audit are acted upon within 
adequate timeframes. 

 As 7.3  

P
age 36



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 29 of 35 

Appendix 3 – Actions from previous Annual Governance Statements 
The following table details actions taken on Governance issues noted in previous Annual Governance Statements: 
No Governance Issues Action Required Update Delivery 

Programme or 
Lead Service 

Due 
Date 

 2020-21     

1 Adherence to the key decision 
making framework 

a. The action plan that 
has been put in place 
to address the issues 
arising from the 
Internal Audit limited 
assurance report to 
be progressed.  

a. Actions from the audit report 
have been completed in the 
main, with the scope then 
extended to include a wider 
remit (See action 1 2021/22 
below) 
 

Director of 
Resources 

August 
2020 

  b. Actions include 
forming a Working 
Group of officers from 
Adult Care, Finance, 
Legal & Governance 
and STAR. 

b. The Working Group of officers 
from Adult Care, Finance, 
STaR Legal & Governance and 
STAR was established. This is 
an operational group that looks 
to make continuous 
improvement on an ongoing 
basis. 

  

2 Feedback mechanisms are 
utilised to demonstrate how 
views have been taken into 
account and implemented 

a. Feedback 
mechanisms to be 
enhanced by the use 
of the corporate 
consultation hub. 

a. Staff conferences, staff survey 
and listening events - result in a 
'you said, we did' action plan 
and communication which is 
relayed to staff. 

 

Assistant 
Director - 
Commissioning 
(Prevention and 
Adult Social 
Care 

 

March 
2021 

P
age 37



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 30 of 35 

No Governance Issues Action Required Update Delivery 
Programme or 
Lead Service 

Due 
Date 

   b. The consultation hub will be 
utilised for any future service 
developments / 
recommissioning / 
decommissioning of services 

  

3 Collecting and evaluating the 
views and experiences of 
communities, residents, 
service users and outside 
organisations  

a. Further improvements 
to be made in the co-
design of services. 
Customer satisfaction 
KPI’s will be collected 
with commissioned 
services. 

a. Evidence obtained during the 
Directors’ Assurance Statement 
review highlighted that action 
had been taken in this area. 
For example: 
i. Partnership Boards / service 

user groups and staff forums 
all contribute to service 
development initiatives 

ii. Public consultations and the 
feedback sought 

iii. Better use made of social 
media  

iv. Provider care market 
consultation carried out 
regularly 

v. Strong local safeguarding 
board, with input from 
appropriate senior officers 

The service is planning to 
recruit a specific post to 
support this work it is 
anticipated that this will be in 
place by July 22. 

Assistant 
Director - 
Commissioning 
(Prevention and 
Adult Social 
Care 

 

March 
2021 

P
age 38



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 31 of 35 

No Governance Issues Action Required Update Delivery 
Programme or 
Lead Service 

Due 
Date 

  b. To better understand 
the requirements of 
stakeholder 
engagement, and to 
review the approach 
to consultation and 
engagement to 
ensure that effective 
arrangements are in 
place across the 
directorate. 

b. A review of how we consult 
with key information has been 
undertaken, these being the 
Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme, potential savings 
programmes, budget, and 
capital programme. MTFS and 
various strategies. We are 
satisfied that appropriate 
consultation is undertaken with 
key stakeholders, this being 
achieved through the 
consultation hub, schools 
forum,  Townships, social 
media, information in 
libraries/intranet, global emails, 
trade unions and member 
engagement. Specific 
stakeholder engagement will be 
undertaken if any proposed 
decisions are impacting directly 
on them as an organisation. 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

March 
2021 

4 Maintaining an effective 
workforce strategy to develop 
the strategic allocation of 
resources 

a. Continued 
improvement of the 
allocation of 
resources by the 
development of a 
wider Public Health 
workforce strategy. 

a. Commissioning decisions 
frameworks have been applied 
for key decisions, ICB reports, 
procurement processes 
followed for key contracts, 
Additional funding for the 
pandemic response used for 

Assistant 
Director - 
Commissioning 
(Prevention and 
Adult Social 
Care) 

March 
2021 

P
age 39



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 32 of 35 

No Governance Issues Action Required Update Delivery 
Programme or 
Lead Service 

Due 
Date 

workforce strategy. Decisions 
for the pandemic response 
taken under the emergency 
governance of Gold Control as 
needed, Community 
engagement mechanisms and 
processes run with other 
directorates. 

5 Plans are in place to consider 
the leadership’s own 
effectiveness and ensuring 
leaders are open to 
constructive feedback 

a. Strengthening the 
approach by carrying 
out a 360 assessment 
of leadership or 
conducting a staff 
survey. In addition a 
coaching approach 
will be developed 
within the staff team. 

a. The following actions are 
ongoing: 
i. Annual staff conferences 

and staff listening events.  
ii. Talent Conversations 

implemented annually 
across the service, and 
training plan timescales 
released to assist managers 
in workforce and training 
planning. 

iii. Talent Conversation and 
Supervision completion are 
monitored. 

iv. Training and Development 
service wide plan in place 

v. Aspiring leaders and 
leadership academy (HR 
programmes). 

A coaching approach has been 
adopted by the service and 

Assistant 
Director - 
Commissioning 
(Prevention and 
Adult Social 
Care) 

March 
2021 

P
age 40



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 33 of 35 

No Governance Issues Action Required Update Delivery 
Programme or 
Lead Service 

Due 
Date 

coaching is available to 
managers and staff, coaching is 
identified through Talent 
conversations and the delve 
process.  Corporately we have 
a pool of trained staff that are 
coaches that staff can utilise 

6 Appropriate key performance 
indicators are in place as part 
of planning processes in order 
to identify how the 
performance of services and 
projects are to be measured 

a. Continued 
development and 
review of the key 
performance 
indicators to ensure 
that they effectively 
monitor service 
delivery. 

a. A review of the corporate PI's 
have been undertaken. All 
indicators are fit for purpose 
with the exception of STaR 
savings. Further work is being 
undertaken in this area. 

Chief Finance 
Officer 

March 
2021 

7  Impact of Coronavirus a. An ongoing 
assessment of the 
impact of the 
coronavirus pandemic 
on council services 
and council systems 
and lessons learned 
will be undertaken in 
order to ensure good 
governance. 

a. The regular Gold Covid 
Response meetings and the 
minutes thereof capture the 
ongoing assessment and 
lessons learned at various 
stages of the pandemic. This 
overarching Group was 
supported through the work of 
a number of more operational 
sub-groups dealing with 
operational impacts at a more 
granular level. 

Director of 
Resources 

 

 

March 
2021 

P
age 41



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 34 of 35 

No Governance Issues Action Required Update Delivery 
Programme or 
Lead Service 

Due 
Date 

  b. Council plans and the 
medium term financial 
strategy to be 
reviewed in the light 
of the impact of 
coronavirus. 

b. The MTFS takes account of the 
known and potential long term 
financial impact of the 
pandemic. This is reviewed 6 
monthly to ensure it remains fit 
for purpose. A recovery plan 
has been developed by LT 
which will be presented to 
Members at future meetings. 

Director of 
Resources 

 

 

March 
2021 

 2021-22     

1 Actions from AGS 20/21. a. Ensure actions 
completed  

a. See details noted above. Director of 
Resources 

Sept 
2021 

2 Audit of key decisions. a. Revisit and review the 
key decision making 
process to ensure 
that all agreed 
updates have taken 
place and are being 
followed 

a. The audit commenced in March 
2022 with major improvements 
noted, although there are a 
small number of instances 
where the key decision process 
is not being followed 
completely. Contract CPRs 
have been updated and 
approved at full Council. 

Director of 
Resources 

March 
2022 

3 Complete governance related 
audits from the Audit Plan 
21/22. 

a. Ensure all 
governance related 
audits are completed 
– see narrative below 
for details. 

a. All relevant Governance related 
audits were completed during 
2021-22 and outcomes 
reported to the Audit & 
Governance Committee. 

Director of 
Resources 

March 
2022 

P
age 42



 
2021-22 Annual Governance Statement (v0.01) Page 35 of 35 

No Governance Issues Action Required Update Delivery 
Programme or 
Lead Service 

Due 
Date 

4 Directors’ Assurance 
Statements. 

 

a. Consider lessons to 
be learnt from the 
most recently 
completed Directors’ 
Assurance 
Statements process 
with a view to 
streamlining it and 
making it more timely 
in the future. 

a. As detailed in section 5.2, the 
Directors’ Assurance Statement 
process has been reviewed 
and refreshed. This will be 
reviewed annually as part of 
the process. 

Director of 
Resources 

Sept 
2021 

P
age 43



 

Report to the Audit & Governance Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 27 July 2022 
 
Portfolio Holder  Portfolio Holder for Finance and 

Corporate 
 
Report Author Shaun Knowles 
 
Public / Private Document Public 

 
 

Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

1.0 Executive Summary 
1.1 To comply with best professional practice, the Audit and Governance 

Committee is advised to complete an annual report to Full Council on the work 
undertaken by the Audit and Governance Committee during the year. 

1.2 Rochdale Borough Council recognises the importance of having arrangements 
for good governance in place, and the Annual Governance Statement 
highlights that, in a number of areas, there are effective arrangements in 
place. 

1.3 Attached at Appendix A is the Annual Report for 2021-22 prepared by the 
Chair in consultation with the Head of Internal Audit. 

2.0 Recommendation 
2.1 That the draft Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report for 2021-22 be 

approved and submitted to Full Council.    

3.0 Reason for Recommendation 
3.1 To comply with best practice identified within the CIPFA publication: Audit 

Committee: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police 2018 and in 
order to demonstrate accountability. 

4.0 The Governance Framework 
4.1 Given its role in the governance structure and in promoting the principles of 

good governance, the Audit and Governance Committee should be clear how 
it supports one of the key principles, accountability. Aside from the Audit and 
Governance Committee’s requirement to support the Authority’s accountability 
to the public and stakeholders, and support accountability within the Authority, 
it is also important that the Committee itself is held to account. 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



 

4.2 The Annual Report for 2021-22 presented in Appendix A is the means by 
which the Audit and Governance Committee demonstrates its accountability to 
Full Council, as the overall governing body of the Authority. 

4.3 Alternatives Considered 
4.3 No other options were considered as the production of an Annual Report 

aligns with best practice guidance. 

5.0 Cost & Budget Summary 
5.1 Not Applicable. 

6.0 Risk & Policy Implications 
6.1 The key risk of not producing an Annual Report is that the Audit and 

Governance Committee does not demonstrate clear accountability and does 
not therefore comply with best professional practice. 

7.0 Consultation 
7.1 Not Applicable. 

8.0 Information 
8.1 Background Papers Place of Inspection 

None 

8.2 For further information contact Shaun Knowles 
  01706 925497 
  shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 45

mailto:shaun.knowles@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix A – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

FOREWORD 
The Chair of the Audit and Governance Committee  
 
The Audit and Governance Committee’s Annual Report records progress in how the 
Committee provides the degree of independence, questioning, and thoroughness 
required across a wide range of control and corporate governance matters.  
 
During the year face to face meetings recommenced. The Committee met on five 
occasions and received reports in connection with the full range of issues that fall within 
its remit. 
 
This report indicates the breadth of the Audit and Governance Committee’s work in 
ensuring that every aspect of the Council’s work is compliant with standards and 
transparent to its stakeholders. The Committee received reports on a variety of items, 
this included being kept up to date on current developments in wider governance 
standards and expectations as well as dealing with relevant Council business. The 
Annual Report demonstrates the value of the Audit and Governance Committee to both 
the Council and the public in ensuring that improvements to the governance of the 
Authority continue to be made. 
 
The Audit and Governance Committee continues to look to make a valuable contribution 
to the development of standards and protocols across a wide range of governance 
areas during what has been a challenging year and has proved its worth in helping to 
ensure that these are implemented across the Council in an effective and compliant 
way. 
 
During 2021-22, a major piece of work was carried out in relation to ‘Best Value’ reports 
issued at three local authorities. Findings were presented to both the Audit and 
Governance Committee and the Council’s Leadership Team, and have been used, in 
conjunction with the risk register, and with discussions with senior managers, to set the 
audit plan for 2022/23. 
 
Looking forward, the Council faces ongoing challenges to continue to achieve the 
required budget savings and comply with statutory requirements. Having a strong Audit 
and Governance Committee is essential to ensure that the Council achieves its 
objectives effectively in these areas. It is therefore important that the Audit and 
Governance Committee continues to operate in a proactive manner regarding risks to 
the organisation and, in conjunction with officers, continue to identify key risks and 
ensure that appropriate actions are taken in direct response to these in a timely manner. 
To support this, and the introduction of new committee members, training has been 
reviewed and a comprehensive training programme developed. 
 
The Audit and Governance Committee must continue its work on strengthening the 
Council’s democratic and governance procedures, and a continual challenge of the 
wider Constitution and governance structures within the Council should help to support 
this aim. 
 
Finally, it is important to acknowledge the excellent work of the members of the Audit 
and Governance Committee and the supporting officers during the past year. 
 

Page 46



Appendix A – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 What drives governance policy? 
The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively. In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also 
responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of control which facilitates 
the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk. 
 
Effective corporate governance is a fundamental feature of any successful public 
sector organisation. Following several high profile failures in the private sector, 
the desire to strengthen governance arrangements spread from the private 
sector to the public sector and resulted in the joint Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)/Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
(SOLACE) document Delivering Good Governance in Local Government - a 
Framework. The Framework, originally launched in 2007, has since been 
updated in 2016 as a result of which governance standards became focused on 
seven core principles. 
 
In addition, the CIPFA Financial Management Code (CIPFA FM Code) is 
designed to support good practice in financial management and to assist local 
authorities in demonstrating their financial sustainability. The CIPFA FM Code 
therefore sets the standards of financial management for local authorities. 
 
A sound corporate governance framework involves accountability to service 
users, stakeholders and the wider community, within which authorities take 
decisions, and lead and control their functions, to achieve their objectives. It 
thereby provides an opportunity to demonstrate the positive elements of an 
authority's business and to promote public confidence. 
 
Rochdale Borough Council has a local Code of Corporate Governance based on 
the following seven core principles which underpin and define the meaning of 
good governance: 

 
(i) Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, 

and respecting the rule of law; 
(ii) Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement; 
(iii) Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 

environmental benefits; 
(iv) Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 

intended outcomes; 
(v) Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it; 
(vi) Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management; and 
(vii) Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability. 

Page 47



Appendix A – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

1.2 Why do we need an Audit and Governance Committee? 
While there is no statutory obligation to have such an arrangement, Audit 
Committees are widely recognised as a core component of effective governance 
and therefore reflect good practice. Rochdale’s Audit and Governance 
Committee is properly constituted and, as such, is given sufficient authority and 
resources by the Council. In effect, the Committee has the right to obtain all the 
information it considers necessary and to consult directly with senior managers. 
In line with best practice from both the public and private sectors, the Audit and 
Governance Committee can report its observations and concerns directly to the 
Council. 
 
A local authority has a duty to ensure that it is fulfilling its responsibility for 
adequate and effective internal control, risk management, and governance, as 
well as the economy, efficiency and effectiveness of its activities. The Audit and 
Governance Committee has a key role in overseeing and assessing the internal 
control, risk management, and corporate governance arrangements and advising 
the Council on the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 
 
Good corporate governance requires independent, effective assurance about the 
adequacy of financial management and of management arrangements for 
achieving the organisation's objectives. These responsibilities require an 
independent and challenging approach. Through these mechanisms, Committee 
Members are able to use their skills and experiences to influence the Council’s 
governance, internal control processes, and risk management arrangements. 
 
An effective committee can bring many benefits to the Council including:  

 increasing public confidence in the objectivity and fairness of financial and 
other reporting; 

 providing additional assurance through a process of independent and 
objective scrutiny; 

 raising awareness of the need for internal control and the implementation of 
audit recommendations; and 

 reinforcing the importance and independence of Internal Audit. 

1.3 What does an Audit and Governance Committee do? 
The Audit and Governance Committee’s main responsibilities are to oversee the 
Council’s corporate governance arrangements, the work of Internal Audit, and 
the Council’s response to external audit and other external inspections. Working 
in partnership with the Monitoring Officer and the Council’s Independent Member 
and Independent Person, the Committee also plays a key role in the oversight of 
complaint arrangements under the Code of Conduct for Members of the Council. 
 
This purpose of an Audit Committee is reflected in its Terms of Reference which 
are reviewed and adopted each year by Full Council (attached at Appendix 1). 
The Committee advises the Council on all matters relating to its corporate 
governance. In doing so, the Committee receives scheduled reports on the 
following matters: 

 
 reviewing the operation and compliance with the Council’s Code of 

Corporate Governance and making recommendations on its content; 

Page 48



Appendix A – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

 keeping the Council's Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy under review and 
making recommendations to the Council on the content and operation of that 
Policy; 

 reviewing and approving the Annual Governance Statement and ensuring 
that; 
 the statements made properly reflect the risk environment; 
 there is reliable evidence to support the disclosures made; and, 
 that any necessary improvement actions are being taken; 

 approving the Annual Statement of Accounts; 
 receiving and reviewing the external auditor’s opinion on the Annual 

Statement of Accounts, and monitoring management’s responses to the 
issues raised by external audit; 
 overseeing Internal Audit’s operations, in particular: 

- receiving any Internal Audit strategies, Charter, audit plans, and 
considering progress against such plans as necessary through 
quarterly reports to Committee; 

- receiving Annual Reports on Internal Audit, Risk & Insurance, and 
Counter Fraud activities; and 

- reviewing the progress and adequacy of management’s response to 
Internal Audit’s recommendations, and matters arising from Internal 
Audit reports;  

 receiving the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter, Audit Plans, and any 
other reports and significant matters deemed necessary by the external 
auditor; 

 reviewing the progress and adequacy of management’s response to external 
audit recommendations;  

 receiving reports on the Risk Management Strategy and the monitoring and 
review of risk management, in order to consider the effectiveness of 
arrangements;  

 having oversight of the Council’s arrangements for dealing with complaints 
about Members and any other issues associated with the  Code of Conduct 
for Members; and 

 in cases where an investigation has upheld allegations that Members have 
breached the Code of Conduct, the Committee holds public hearings to make 
the final decision and determine the sanction in appropriate cases. 

1.4 How do Officers Support the Committee? 
The Audit and Governance Committee is supported by: 
 The Chief Finance Officer as Section 151 Officer who is responsible under the 

law for ensuring the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs and 
who has overall responsibility for the arrangements in this area; 

 The Monitoring Officer who is required by law to ensure that the Council acts 
within its legal powers at all times, dealing with the day to day handling of 
ethical standards complaints and reporting to the Council in cases where the 
Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman makes a reportable finding of 
maladministration; 

 The Head of Internal Audit who has a key role to play in supporting the 
Committee because of the importance of the Internal Audit service to 
governance; and  

 Any other officer of the Council as required. 
 

Page 49



Appendix A – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

2.00 FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 
This Annual Report for 2021-22, produced by the Audit and Governance 
Committee, has been prepared in accordance with the CIPFA best practice 
publication ‘A Toolkit for Local Authority Audit Committees’. The report 
demonstrates how the Audit and Governance Committee has fulfilled its terms of 
reference and how it is fully committed to helping to improve the Council’s 
governance and control environments. 

 
The Committee’s activities during 2021-22 were designed to make a positive 
contribution to the continual improvement of governance arrangements across 
the Council, as well as performing the statutory roles as identified in the 
Constitution. 
 

3.0 SOME KEY INFORMATION 

3.1 Audit and Governance Committee Membership 
During 2021-22 the Audit and Governance Committee had 9 core Members, 
together with one independent member and two independent persons to support 
standards related issues in accordance with the Localism Act 2011. Throughout 
2020/21 these members were as follows: 
 
Councillor Sameena Zaheer – Chair 
Councillor Ali Ahmed 
Councillor Sultan Ali 
Councillor Allen Brett 
Councillor James Gartside 
Councillor Aftab Hussain 
Councillor Donna Martin 
Councillor Philip Massey 
Councillor Donna Williams 
Craig Ainsworth (independent member) 
Miranda Carruthers-Watt (independent person) 
Jaime Sanderson (independent person) 

- Key Features of the Audit Committee and its Operation 
The Committee meets CiPFA’s definition of best practice as illustrated below: 
Best Practice     Expectation Met  Comment 
Independence  Independent 

from the 
executive and 
scrutiny 

√ The Committee reports to the  
Council 
 

Number of 
Members 

3 to 5 
members 

√ The Committee has 9 members, 
plus 1 independent member and 1 
independent person, with the option 
of 1 further independent member 
and person.  

Number of 
meetings 
 

Aligned to 
business 
needs 
 

√ The frequency of meetings, 4 or 5 
times a year, complies with best 
practice and ensures all core 
business is completed in a timely 
manner. Other meetings may be 

Page 50



Appendix A – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

3.2 Meetings 
Face to face meetings recommenced during 2021-22, and the Audit and 
Governance Committee met in June, August, September, December 2021, and 
March 2022.  

 
4.0 CORE ACTIVITY 2021/22  

4.1 Terms of Reference 
The Audit and Governance Committee’s Terms of Reference (Appendix 1) are 
comprehensive, and cover all main areas. The Committee’s work and outcomes 
in each of its areas of responsibility are summarised in the following subsections. 

4.2 Internal Audit 
The Audit and Governance Committee: 
 Approved Internal Audit’s Annual Audit Plan; 
 Considered regular reports produced by the Head of Internal Audit highlighting 

internal audit work completed, Internal Audit performance against key 
indicators and any significant issues arising during the period; 

 Considered the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Report and assurance opinion 
on the Council’s control environment; 

 Ensured internal and external audit plans were complementary and provided 
optimum use of the total audit resource; and 

 Monitored the progress made in the implementation of high and medium 
priority audit recommendations through regular reports received from Internal 
Audit, also inviting senior management within certain services to attend and 
present updates on progress being made on significant areas.  

 

scheduled if deemed appropriate to 
support business needs.  

Co-option  
 

To be 
considered 
relative to skills 
 

√ Training is provided to increase 
Members’ skills; this is assessed on 
an ongoing basis to ensure the 
Committee remains effective and to 
determine future training 
requirements. Independent 
members provide relevant oversight. 

Terms of 
Reference 
 

Accord with 
suggested 
best practice 
 

√ The Committee has adopted the 
CIPFA recommended model Terms 
Of Reference and these are 
reviewed annually to ensure that 
they remain fit for purpose. 

Skills and 
training 
 

Members have 
sufficient skills 
for the job 
 

√ General and specific training is 
provided to increase Members’ 
skills, with an induction for new 
Members and ongoing assessment 
of any specific needs to inform 
future training plans. 

Page 51



Appendix A – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

Support is provided to the Internal Audit service to ensure management is 
responsive to recommendations made and agreed. 

4.3 External Audit 
The Audit and Governance Committee: 
 Considered the external auditor’s Audit Plan and audit fee; 
 Considered progress against the plan presented by the external auditor; 
 Received and considered all external audit issued in the year and considered 

management’s response to them, ensuring robust and thorough responses; 
 Considered the Value for Money conclusions and ensured appropriate actions 

were being taken to address any issues and challenges arising; 
 Considered the external auditor’s Annual Audit Letter; and 

 
Support is provided to external audit to ensure management is responsive to 
recommendations made and agreed. 

4.4 Risk Management 
The Audit and Governance Committee: 
 Received details of the Risk Management system, how it works and 

arrangements in place for mitigating risks; 
 Considered regular reports from the Risk Manager on developments within 

both Service based and Corporate Risk Registers to ensure the Members are 
aware of any emerging risks across the Council and the extent to which the 
Risk Management Strategy is being embedded; and 

 Considered and challenged the Corporate Risk Register to support monitoring 
undertaken by the Leadership Team. 

 
Support is provided to promote effective Risk Management policies and 
procedures across the Council and ensure best practice is achieved.  

4.5 Counter Fraud 
The Audit and Governance Committee: 
 Considered regular reports produced by the Counter Fraud Manager, 

highlighting fraud work completed, and any significant issues arising during 
the period; and 

 Considered the Counter Fraud Manager’s Annual Report. 

4.6 Internal Control and Governance 
The Audit and Governance Committee: 
 Agreed the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and action plans to 

improve identified weaknesses. 
 

The Annual Governance Statement is a key document which summarises the 
Council’s governance arrangements and the effectiveness of the arrangements 
during the year. 

4.7 Accounts 
The Audit and Governance Committee: 
 Received and considered the external auditor’s report on the accounts, and 

ensured that the Council responded appropriately to the auditor’s comments 
and recommendations; and 

Page 52



Appendix A – Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22 

 Reviewed and approved the Annual Statement of Accounts, considering 
whether appropriate accounting policies have been followed and whether 
there are any concerns arising from the financial statements or from the audit 
that need to be brought to the attention of the Council. 

 
5.00 PLANS FOR 2022/23 

During 2021/22 the Audit and Governance Committee has continued to 
champion good governance across the Council, and going forward will look to 
develop further and help to support and address many of the issues which may 
arise in such a challenging and difficult environment. Priorities for 2022/23 are to 
continue to meet our duties as specified in the Constitution by developing and 
building on our current status as well as responding to and implementing any 
requirements arising out of the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards and the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2015. For 2022/23 we will:  
 Continue to develop the effectiveness of the Audit and Governance 

Committee to review all governance issues identified, including the support 
and challenge of new governance arrangements associated with the 
development of integrated health and care commissioning;  

 Develop the proactive nature of the Committee to facilitate actions by officers 
to ensure that risks are identified earlier in the process and remedial actions 
taken in a more timely fashion in response; 

 Continue to drive up standards, through ongoing challenge, to ensure the 
Council is able to meet the demanding requirements of the external inspection 
and assessment regime; 

 Continue to review governance arrangements to ensure the Council adopts 
the very latest best practice; 

 To receive a report on the finance management code which supports the 
CIPFA/SOLACE framework; 

 Continue to support the work of Internal and External Audit and ensure 
appropriate responses are given to their recommendations; 

 Ensure we maintain and further improve our standards in relation to the 
accounts; 

 Continue to support the Council to manage the risk of fraud and corruption; 
and 

 Equip existing and any new Members to fulfil our responsibilities by providing 
more detailed and effective training on all key areas of responsibility including 
financial arrangements, risk management, governance and audit. 

Page 53



Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22   Appendix 1

Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference 
According to The Council’s Constitution the Audit Committee is responsible for the 
following functions which have been split into these 3 areas:  
 
1.00 Council functions 
1.01 Duty to approve the Authority’s Statement of Accounts, income and expenditure 

and balance sheet, or record of payments and receipts (as the case may be); 
1.02 Powers to make payments or provide benefits in cases of maladministration 

etc; 
1.03 Duty to divide constituency into polling districts; and 
1.04 Power to divide electoral divisions into polling districts at local government 

elections. 
 

2.00 Functions related to the Code of Conduct for Councillors and 
Voting Co-opted Members 

1.05 Establish a Sub-Committee to consider an exceptional referral of a complaint 
from the Monitoring Officer; 

1.06 To appoint to Hearings Panels (Sub-Committees) if not otherwise appointed by 
the Monitoring Officer; 

1.07 Granting dispensations to Councillors, Independent Members and Co-opted 
Members who would otherwise be unable to participate in and/or vote on a 
matter due to a prejudicial interest on the grounds that: 

1.08 The grant of the dispensation would be in the interest of the inhabitants of the 
Authority’s area; or 

1.09 It is otherwise appropriate to grant the dispensation; and 
1.010 Monitoring of the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-opted 

Members, of the Protocol for Relationships between Members and Council 
Employees, the Code of Conduct for Members considering Planning Matters 
and the Code of Conduct for Members dealing with Licensing Matters 
(Licensing Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005, and Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013). 

 
3.00 Functions of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy’s recommended ‘audit committee’ 
1.011 To approve the Annual Governance Statement and monitor achievement; 
1.012 To approve the Internal Audit Charter; 
1.013 To review and approve the Internal Audit Annual Plan and the Risk 

Management Strategy, considering the effectiveness of the proposed audit 
programme in providing adequate assurance over arrangements for 
governance, risk management and internal control; 

1.014 To consider Internal Audit reports arising from the Internal Audit Annual Plan, 
ensuring that adequate management responses are made in respect of the 
findings of audit investigations, and particularly monitoring the outcomes of 
responses to individual significant adverse reports on financial management 
and internal control; 
 To consider the Internal Audit Annual Report and to ensure the 

implementation of appropriate action; 
 To review the adequacy of the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, and 

related policies and procedures, to ensure their application and 
effectiveness; 

Page 54



Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22   Appendix 1
 To consider the External Audit Plan, the external auditor’s annual letter, 

relevant reports and the annual report to those charged with governance on 
issues arising from the audit of the Annual Statement of Accounts; and 

 To review the Council’s Risk Registers (Council Constitution, Part 3 
responsibility for functions).  

Page 55



Document is Restricted

Page 56

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Annual Governance Statement 2021-22
	Annual Governance Statement 2021-22
	1.0	Executive Summary
	2.0	Recommendation
	3.0	Reason for Recommendation
	4.0	Key Points for Consideration
	5.0	Annual Governance Statement Action Plan Update
	6.0	Alternatives Considered
	7.0	Cost & Budget Summary
	8.0	Risk & Policy Implications
	9.0	Consultation
	10.0	Information
	Append. 1 for Annual Governance Statement 2021-22
	Annual
	Governance
	Statement
	2021 / 22
	1.0	Introduction
	2.0	Scope of Responsibility
	2.1	Scope
	2.2	The Code of Corporate Governance

	3.0	The Purpose of the Annual Governance Statement
	3.1	The Code of Corporate Governance

	4.0	The Governance Framework
	4.1	Governance Arrangements
	4.2	The Audit & Governance Committee
	4.3	The Governance Board

	5.0	Review of the Effectiveness of the Governance Framework
	5.1	Annual Review
	5.2	Directors’ Assurance Statements (DAS)
	5.3	The Annual Self-Assessment Process
	5.4	Financial Management Code
	5.5	Financial Regulations
	5.5	Other Control Mechanisms

	6.0	Impact of Coronavirus
	7.0	Internal Audit and the Opinion on Internal Control
	8.0	External Audit and Inspection Reports
	9.0	Conclusion
	10.0	Actions Planned for 2022 / 23
	11.0	Signed on behalf of Rochdale Borough Council
	Appendix 1 – Rochdale Borough Council Assurance Framework
	Appendix 2 – The Governance Framework
	Appendix 3 – Actions from previous Annual Governance Statements



	7 Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22
	Audit and Governance Committee Annual Report 2021-22
	1.0	Executive Summary
	2.0	Recommendation
	3.0	Reason for Recommendation
	4.0	The Governance Framework
	4.3	Alternatives Considered

	5.0	Cost & Budget Summary
	6.0	Risk & Policy Implications
	7.0	Consultation
	8.0	Information
	FOREWORD
	The Audit and Governance Committee’s Annual Report records progress in how the Committee provides the degree of independence, questioning, and thoroughness required across a wide range of control and corporate governance matters.
	During the year face to face meetings recommenced. The Committee met on five occasions and received reports in connection with the full range of issues that fall within its remit.
	This report indicates the breadth of the Audit and Governance Committee’s work in ensuring that every aspect of the Council’s work is compliant with standards and transparent to its stakeholders. The Committee received reports on a variety of items, this included being kept up to date on current developments in wider governance standards and expectations as well as dealing with relevant Council business. The Annual Report demonstrates the value of the Audit and Governance Committee to both the Council and the public in ensuring that improvements to the governance of the Authority continue to be made.
	The Audit and Governance Committee continues to look to make a valuable contribution to the development of standards and protocols across a wide range of governance areas during what has been a challenging year and has proved its worth in helping to ensure that these are implemented across the Council in an effective and compliant way.
	During 2021-22, a major piece of work was carried out in relation to ‘Best Value’ reports issued at three local authorities. Findings were presented to both the Audit and Governance Committee and the Council’s Leadership Team, and have been used, in conjunction with the risk register, and with discussions with senior managers, to set the audit plan for 2022/23.
	Looking forward, the Council faces ongoing challenges to continue to achieve the required budget savings and comply with statutory requirements. Having a strong Audit and Governance Committee is essential to ensure that the Council achieves its objectives effectively in these areas. It is therefore important that the Audit and Governance Committee continues to operate in a proactive manner regarding risks to the organisation and, in conjunction with officers, continue to identify key risks and ensure that appropriate actions are taken in direct response to these in a timely manner. To support this, and the introduction of new committee members, training has been reviewed and a comprehensive training programme developed.
	The Audit and Governance Committee must continue its work on strengthening the Council’s democratic and governance procedures, and a continual challenge of the wider Constitution and governance structures within the Council should help to support this aim.
	1.0	BACKGROUND
	1.1	What drives governance policy?
	1.2	Why do we need an Audit and Governance Committee?
	1.3	What does an Audit and Governance Committee do?
	1.4	How do Officers Support the Committee?

	2.00	FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22
	3.0	SOME KEY INFORMATION
	3.1	Audit and Governance Committee Membership
	-	Key Features of the Audit Committee and its Operation
	3.2	Meetings

	4.0	CORE ACTIVITY 2021/22
	4.1	Terms of Reference
	4.2	Internal Audit
	4.3	External Audit
	4.4	Risk Management
	4.5	Counter Fraud
	4.6	Internal Control and Governance
	4.7	Accounts

	5.00	PLANS FOR 2022/23
	Audit and Governance Committee Terms of Reference
	1.00	Council functions
	2.00	Functions related to the Code of Conduct for Councillors and Voting Co-opted Members
	3.00	Functions of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s recommended ‘audit committee’

	9 Special Guardianship

